
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION 

Defendant. 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

SPECIAL DATA PROCESSING CORPORATION, 

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF 

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission ("Commission"), by its undersigned 

attorneys, alleges: 

C~VIL 



3. Venue in the Middle District of Florida is proper under 15 u.S.C. 5 53(b) and 

28 U.S.C. $ 5  1391(b) and (c). 

PLAINTIFF 

4. Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission, is an independent agency of the 

United States Government created by the FTC Act. 15 U.S.C. 55  41 et seq. The Commission 

is charged, inter alia, with enforcement of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 45(a), 

which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce. The 

Commission also enforces the Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 3 10, which prohibits 

deceptive or abusive telemarketing acts or practices. The Commission is authorized to 

initiate federal district court proceedings, by its own attorneys, to enjoin violations of the 

FTC Act and the Telemarketing Sales Rule, and to secure such eq~~itable relief as is 

appropriate in each case, including restitution for injured consumers and disgorgement. 15 

U.S.C. 55  53(b), 57b and 

for injured 



COMMERCE 

6 .  At all times material hereto, Defendant has been engaged in the business of 

offering for sale and selling magazines and buying service memberships, in or affecting 

commerce, as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 44. 

DEFENDANT'S COURSE OF CONDUCT 

7. At least since 1997, Defendant has marketed and sold magazine subscriptions, 

typically in packages consisting of three to seven magazine stzbscriptions for terms of one to 

fotu- years each. The magazine subscription packages cost up to several hundred dollars each, 

depending 



9. 



consumer has already provided a credit card number to purchase the product or service 

initially offered by the telemarketer. 

14. In numerous upsell sales pitches during 1998 and 1999, Defendant represented 

that consumers will receive a "no obligation" 30-day membership in the Triad discount 



order. Defendant did not at this time mention any credit card charges relating to the Triad or 

other buying service membership. 

17. If consumers agreed or purportedly agreed to the trial memberships, and in 

some instances, even if consumers did not agree, Defendant provided the consumers' names 

and credit card numbers or other billing information to the buying service. Shortly after 

consumers signed up for the trial memberships, the Triad or other buying service mailed, by 

third-class bulk mail, materials to consumers about the buying service memberships and the 

trial offers. These materials disclosed that the consumer must call to cancel to avoid a credit 

card charge, and the telephone number that the consumer must call to cancel the membership. 

Numerous consumers, however, may not have opened these mailings because they appeared 

to be unsolicited promotional or sales materials. 

18. W i t h  about 45 days after receiving the consumer's name and billing 

information, the Triad or other buying service charged each such consumer's credit card, 

unless the consumer notified the buying service by calling a toll-free number that the 

consumer wishes to cancel the membership. The buying service's toll-free telephone number 

appeared on the consumer's credit card statement along with the charge for the buying 

service membership. Unless the consumer called to cancel, the Triad or other buying service 

also automatically renewed the membership and processed a charge to the consumer's credit 

card in each subsequent year. 
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THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT 

19. Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 8 45(a), provides that "unfair or 

deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce are hereby declared unlawful." 

VIOLATION OF SECTION 5(a) OF THE FTC ACT 

COUNT I 

20. In numerous instances, in connection with the advertising, promotion, 

marketing, offering for sale, sale, or distribution of Triad and other buying service 

memberships, Defendant has represented, expressly or by implication, that consumers who 

agree to Defendant's offer of a 30 day trial membership in a buying service incur no 

obligation to take any action to 8a29976 0 0 Tc 1.008411 To~08411 To~08411 To~li6



24. Defendant has failed to disclose or to disclose adequately to consumers: 

A. That a consumer who fails to contact the buying service within 30 days 

and cancel the trial membership is automatically enrolled as a member 

in the buying service and the consumer's credit card is charged an 

annual fee; and 

B. That a member's credit card is charged a renewal fee each subsequent 

year unless the member cancels the membership. 

These facts would be material to consumers in their decision to accept a trial membership 

offer or purchase a membership. 

25. In light of the representation set forth in paragraph 23, Defendant's failure to 

disclose or to disclose adequately the material information set forth in paragraph 24 is a 

deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 45(a). 

COUNT I11 

26. In numerous instances, in connection with the advertising, promotion, 

marketing, offering for sale, sale, or distribution of Triad and other buying service 

memberships, Defendant has caused a charge to be submitted for payment for such 

memberships without the express informed consent of the consumer. 

27. Defendant's practice of causing charges to be submitted for payment for 

buying service memberships without the consumer's express Informed consent causes or is 

likely to cause substantial injury to consumers that is not reasonably avoidable by consumers 

themselves and is not outweighed by countervailing benefits to consumers or to competition. 
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28. Therefore, Defendant's practice, as alleged in Paragraph 26 is unfair in 

violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 45(a). 



offered, the total costs and quantity of goods or services that are part of the initial offer of the 

plan, the total quantity of additional goods or services, if any, that the customer must 

purchase over the duration of the plan, and the cost, or range of costs, to purchase each 

individual additional good or service." 60 Fed. Reg. 43842,43847 (Aug. 23, 1995). 

33. The TSR requires telemarketers in outbound telephone calls to disclose 

promptly and in a clear and conspicuous manner to the person receiving the call, the 

following information: 

A. the identity of the seller, 

B. that the purpose of the call is to sell goods and services, and 

C. 



VIOLATIONS OF THE TELEMARKETING SALES RULE 

COUNT IV 

39. In numerous instances, in connection with the telemarketing of Triad and other 

buying service memberships, Defendant has failed to disclose, in a clear and conspicuous 

manner, before consumers pay for the buying service memberships, all material restrictions, 

limitations or conditions to purchase, receive or use the goods or services that are the subject 

of the offers, including, but not limited to: 

A. That a consumer who fails to contact the buying service within 30 days 

and cancel the trial membership is automatically enrolled as a member 

in the buying service and the consurnerys credit card is charged an 

annual fee; and 

B. That a member's credit card is charged a renewal fee each subsequent 

year unless the member cancels the membership. 

40. Therefore, Defendant's acts and practices as set forth in paragraph 39 violate 

Section 



manner to the person receiving the call: (a) the identity of the seller; and (b) that the purpose 

of the call is to sell magazines. 

42. Therefore, Defendant's acts and practices as set forth in paragraph 41 violate 

Sections 3 lO.4(d)(l) and (2) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. 5 3 lOA(d)(l) and (2). 

CONSUMER INJURY 

43. Consumers throughout the United States have suffered substantial monetary 

loss as a result of Defendant's unlawful acts arid practices. In addition, Defendant has been 

unjustly enriched as a result of its unlawfi~l acts and practices. Absent injunctive relief by 

this Court, Defendant is likely to continue to inj~u-e consumers, reap unjust enrichment, and 

harm the public. 

THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

44. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 53(b), empowers this Court to grant 

injunctive and other ancillary relief, including consumer redress, disgorgement, and 

restitution to prevent and remedy and violations of any provision of law enforced by the 

Commission. 

45. Section 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 57b, and Section 6(b) ofthe 

Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 6105(b), authorize this Court to grant such relief as the Court 

finds necessary to redress injury to consumers or other persons resulting fiom Defendant's 

violations of the TSR, including the rescission or reformation of contracts, and the refund of 

money. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests this Court, as authorized by Sections 13(b) and 19 

of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. $ 5  53(b) and 57b, and Section 6(b) of the Telemarketing Act, 15 

U.S.C. 5 6105(b), and pursuant to its own equitable powers to: 

Dated: 

Permanently enjoin and restrain Defendant fiom engaging or assisting others 

in engaging in violations of the FTC Act and the TSR; 

Award such equitable relief as 15the 55>BDC 




- 
ROBERT M. FRISBY 
Trial Counsel 
Bureau of Consumer Protection 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N. W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
202-326-2098 (telephone) 
202-326-2558 (facsimile) 
rfiisby@,ftc. aov (email) 
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